
1

NOTICE OF MEETING
CABINET MEMBER FOR CULTURE, LEISURE AND SPORT

FRIDAY, 26 JANUARY 2018 AT 9.00 AM

THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR,  THE GUILDHALL

Telephone enquiries to Lisa Gallacher 02392834056
Email: lisa.gallacher@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above.

CABINET MEMBER FOR CULTURE, LEISURE AND SPORT
Councillor Linda Symes (Conservative)

Group Spokespersons

Councillor Stephen Morgan MP, Labour
Councillor Steve Pitt, Liberal Democrat

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is 
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the 
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are 
accepted.

A G E N D A

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

Public Document Pack



2

3  Bandstand 2017 Evaluation Report & 2018 Proposals (Pages 3 - 6)

Purpose of report
To provide an evaluation of the delivery of the Live at the Bandstand 
programme 2017 to inform the way forward for 2018. 

RECOMMENDED
That officers be authorised to contract out the delivery of the Bandstand 
programme 2018 to an organisation with good links with local promoters 
who will plan, oversee and deliver all elements of the 2018 programme of 
free music events on the seafront. 

4  Revenue Grants 2018-2019 (Pages 7 - 10)

Purpose of report
To inform the Cabinet Member of the outline funding levels for the Revenue 
Grant payments to cultural organisations for the financial year 2018-19 
following the outline budget agreement at the Full Council meeting on 12th 
December 2017.  

RECOMMENDED
That the details of the funding levels which have previously been agreed 
by Members at Full Council for cultural organisation for the financial 
year 2018-19. 

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social media 
during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting nor records those 
stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at 
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the 
meeting's venue.

This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785 

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785


 

1 
 

 
  

  
Title of meeting:  
 

Culture, Leisure and Sport Decision Meeting 

Subject: 
 

Bandstand 2017 Evaluation Report & 2018 Proposals 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

26 January 2018 

Report by: 
 

Director of Culture and City Development 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council 
decision: 

No 

 
Wards affected: 
 

 
All 

 

 
1. Requested by 
 The Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure and Sport 
 
2. Purpose 
 
2.1 To provide an evaluation of the delivery of the Live at the Bandstand programme 

2017 to inform the way forward for 2018. 
 
3. Recommendations for delivery of the event in 2018 

 
3.1 That officers be authorised to contract out the delivery of the Bandstand 

programme 2018 to an organisation with good links with local promoters who 
will plan, oversee and deliver all elements of the 2018 programme of free 
music events on the seafront.   

 
4. Background to the Bandstand Programme of events 

 
4.1 Live at the Bandstand is a unique and popular brand with a strong identity that 

presents a positive family friendly activity during the core summer months on the 
seafront.  2018 will be its 20th year the Sunday Live at the Bandstand programme 
which continues to remain popular with both residents and visitors, attracting 
approximately 30,000-40,000 people during a season. 

 
4.2 The event is an attraction to communities and visitors to Portsmouth and is a major 

attraction on the seafront over the summer.  It offers a free live outdoor music 
programme on Southsea seafront in a natural amphitheatre overlooking the sea and 
offers a different style of music each week. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

4.3 The Saturday Bandstand was started 5 years ago with a focus on local bands, 
attracting up to 10,000 over the summer and in doing so extending the free music 
programme to a weekend event. 

 
4.4 A number of different models for delivery of the Bandstand programme have been 

supported over the last 5 years however the decision was made in 2017 to contract 
out the delivery to ensure a continuity of infrastructure support and ensure that 
effective measures could be put into place within the context of increasing national 
security threats.  This was applied to both the Saturday and Sunday events which 
ran from Saturday 27th May to Sunday 13th August 2017. 

 
5. Evaluation of regular Bandstand programme events 
 
5.1 The programme of bands was put together to attract and appeal to family groups 

and to ensure audience numbers and demographics were suitable for the 
bandstand site.  This worked well throughout the season. 

 
5.2 The organisation and booking of the bands was contracted out for the first time to 

the Victorious Team who were able to apply their high standards of documentation 
and continuity of approach across both the Saturday and Sunday events and 
provided further assurance of capacity to respond to any issues or concerns which 
were raised during the event delivery.   The documentation was also assessed and 
amended following feedback from the Portsmouth Event Safety Advisory Group 
(PESAG) meeting where it was shared with all members and incorporated elements 
such as a Show Stop Procedure showing the formal flow of decision making and 
announcements to audiences should this be implemented. 

 
5.3 The range of crowd management measures that PCC had previously incorporated 

as a result of the excessive crowd numbers in 2016 continued to be implemented 
by the Victorious Team including spray lines to identify walkways and exits as well 
as Emergency Exit flags positioned at all major exits.  This allowed movement 
around the site and prevented pinch points and areas of congestion. 

 
5.4 A weekly update to the Event Management Plan (EMP) detailing resourcing for the 

following weekend, specifically including Security numbers and locations which 
differed depending on the anticipated audience demographic and numbers and 
weather conditions were also produced.  The weekly update was received positively 
by PESAG members although there were occasions when this was delayed as late 
as possible due to uncertain weather conditions.   

 
5.5 In early 2017 the Premises Licence was updated to rectify some of the outdated 

and unachievable conditions, this included amending the maximum noise levels 
permissible and detailing the process for managing the noise levels as well as 
increasing the numbers of people able to be onsite at any one time to 8000. 

 
5.6 Two noise complaints were received regarding Saturday 17th June's Bandstand and 

one complaint was received about the 1st and 2nd July's Bandstand.  The organisers 
provided their weekly noise monitoring sheets to PCC's Environmental Health to 

Page 4



 

3 
 

ensure the appropriate level of control was maintained.  This worked well and 
enabled Environmental Health to respond to concerns raised in a timely way. 

 
5.7 Overall the bandstand programme worked well with no significant issues.  PESAG 

considered the programme of bands to be appropriate and the numbers of 
attendees each week were satisfactory for the site. 

 
5.8 In addition to the regular events on the Bandstand site a specific stand-alone event 

with the provision of a Rhythm of the 90s concert took place on Castle Field.  Whilst 
overall this concert was good it did attract approximately 10,000 people to the event 
at its peak and as such this type of event does not fit in with the wider ethos of the 
Bandstand programme which is to appeal to a family audience with low levels of 
alcohol at the event and an audience capacity for the site of 8.000. 

 
5.9 Despite the event being well organised and run, after the event there were a 

number of incidents that impacted heavily on Policing resources both immediately 
and for the rest of the evening. 

 
5.10 Rhythm of the 90s had been part of both Mutiny and Victorious Festivals as well as 

having a further ticketed event at the Pyramids Centre.  It is felt that whilst this band 
is popular there are plenty of opportunities to see them play locally without the need 
for a free showcase event on Castle Field and that going forward opportunities 
should be given to other local bands within the context of the Live at the Bandstand 
programme. 

 
6. Reasons for recommendations 
 
6.1  The Bandstand programme of events will benefit from being contracted out to a 

company who already have links and a good knowledge of music in the city.  It is 
important that a wide range of local promoters are used to broaden the programme 
further whilst keeping the music focussed on local bands and artists. 

6.2  It is important to continue to appropriately address the management of the crowd 
safety and the operational issues of the site.  This will also ensure robust 
companies are employed to manage the site that are capable of reacting to raised 
terror threat levels at short notice as well as issues on site. 

6.3  Recent discussions with Hampshire Police have indicated further support for the 
programme along with a small clarification of the communication methods which are 
proposed to support the whole season.  This will ensure effective feedback to allow 
both internal PCC and other services to provide appropriate resources to support 
the events which take into account the programme and also the forecast weather 
conditions on a weekly basis. 

6.4  Working with PCC and PESAG we would seek to request that one Sunday 
Bandstand to be allocated to a Pride themed event.  The local Pride organisers are 
establishing themselves in the city and will eventually set up as a charity.  Whilst 
this process is taking place the Pride organisers struggle with obtaining resources to 
create a good quality event on their own.  Allocating a Bandstand session to Pride 

Page 5



 

4 
 

would build on their initial Pride event in 2017 and assist the organisers in 
establishing a regular Pride event in the city whilst they are in their set up stage. 

6.5  It is recommended that the Bandstand programme remains in its substantive 
location with bands selected based on their anticipated audience to ensure crowds 
are manageable on site and that it is continued with no bar on site but with the 
public being allowed to drink their own alcohol.  This is in keeping with the wider 
ethos of the Bandstand programme of events.   

 
7. Equality impact assessment (EIA) 
 
7.1 An equality impact assessment is not required as the recommendations to not have 

a negative impact on any of the protected characteristics as described in the 
Equality Act 2010.  This is an annual review of the Bandstand programme and as 
such there is not a change of policy 

 
8. Director of Finance comments 
 
8.1 It is anticipated that the funding required to implement the recommendation in this 

report will exceed the current available budget.  Officers will continue to explore 
options that will to secure the remaining balance. 

 
9  Legal Comments 
 
9.1  The proposed contracting out of the delivery of the 2018 programme will need to be 

carried out in accordance with a process having due regard to the requirements of 
the Council's Contract Procedure Rules. 

 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: 
Stephen Baily 
Director of Culture and City Development   
 
 
 
Appendices: None 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 

Page 6



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Agenda item:  

Title of meeting: 
 

Culture, Leisure & Sport Decision Meeting 

Date of meeting: 
 

26 January 2018 

Subject: 
 

Revenue Grants  2018/2019 
 

Report by: 
 

Director of Culture and City Development 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Full Council 
decision: 

No 

 

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 To inform the Cabinet Member of the outline funding levels for the Revenue Grant 

payments to cultural organisations for the financial year 2018/19 following the 
outline budget agreement at the Full Council meeting on 12th December 2017. 
  

2.    Recommendations 
 
2.1 To confirm the details of the funding levels which have previously been 

agreed by Members at Full Council for cultural organisations for the financial 
year 2018-19. 

  
3.    Background 
 
3.1 There have been a series of reductions in funding to cultural organisations following 

an initial range of consultations undertaken regarding future funding for 
organisations in receipt of council money in October 2013.  The Council meeting on 
12th November 2013 outlined a number of reductions which were then amended 
during the meeting.  

 
3.2 Through a range of measures officers were able to mitigate some of the reductions 

which had been proposed and not all the cuts have been passed onto organisations 
over the last few years.  Officers also encouraged all funded organisations to 
participate in the recent budget consultation and direct links were sent to the senior 
officers encouraging participation. 
 

3.3 Through continued careful budget management it has been possible to secure the 
same level of Revenue funding for the majority of Cultural organisations going into 
2018-19 and these figures are detailed below. 

 
  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

  
3.4 The revenue grant contributions from the Council for 2018/19 are proposed as 

follows: 
 

Organisation Purpose of the Revenue Grant Grant 
2018-19 

Aspex Visual Arts Trust To support the work of Aspex as the 
primary contemporary visual arts space in 
Portsmouth 

£16,900 

Bournemouth Symphony 
Orchestra 

To continue to as key concert centre with 
high quality professional classical 
concerts and outreach programme 

£25,000 

Kings Theatre To support the programme of work at the 
Kings Theatre  

£48,000 

New Theatre Royal To support the programme of work at the 
New Theatre Royal and to provide a 
specific enhancement in 2018/19 of 
£5,000 for the appointment of the new 
Chief Executive 

£82,000 

Peter Ashley Activities 
Centres 

To support the work and activities at both 
Fort Widley and Fort Purbrook 

£3,000 

City of Portsmouth Preserved 
Transport 

To provide specialist storage and 
maintenance for historic vehicles from 
Portsmouth's Museums collection  

£5,300 

 
 

3.5 All grant awards are subject to a detailed Service Level Agreement and a range of 
monitoring and measurable delivery in association with the funding provided by the 
Council. 

 
4.      Reasons for Recommendations 
 
4.1 The provision of revenue funding to cultural organisations has a long history in 

Portsmouth and both Officers and Members have gone to considerable lengths to 
protect the revenue funding through the periods of budget reductions.  The 
continued provision of funding both acknowledges the strategic importance of these 
organisations but also the role this funding provides in levering in funding from other 
cultural funders such as the Arts Council and Heritage Lottery Fund. 

 
5.      Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
5.1 An EIA is not required to support any of the recommendations within this report as 

there is no change of policy. 
 
6.   Legal Comments 
 
6.1 The Council has a specific statutory power under Section 145 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to make contributions (which would include grant funding) 
towards the pursuit of arts, entertainment and cultural objectives and may also rely 

Page 8



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

on the general power of competence for local authorities in the Localism Act 2011, 
section 1. 

 
7.      Director of Finance Comments 
 
7.1 There is full financial provision for these payments in the 2018/19 service budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: 
Stephen Baily 
Director of Culture and City Development   
 
 
 
Appendices: None 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

Minutes of Full Council 
meeting 12th December 
2017 

Link to be inserted after January Council meeting when the 
minutes are agreed 

 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure and Sport 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Bandstand 2017 Evaluation Report & 2018 Proposals
	4 Revenue Grants 2018-2019

